
 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Agenda - Monday, April 03, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Call to Order 

Roll Call 

Invocation given by Director Danny Jewell 

Pledge of Allegiance given by Bi-State Justice Building Manager Kristine Barron 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Please fill out a Citizen Communication Card with your name and contact information for the 

City Clerk's records. 

A limit of five (5) minutes per person is allotted for citizens to express their concerns to the 

Board of Directors, with a maximum of fifty (50) minutes reserved for Citizens 

Communication.   The Board of Directors cannot respond to citizens’ concerns during this time. 
 

PRESENTATION(S) 

1. Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service Awards. (ADMIN)  

2. Proclamation presented to Central Records and Communications (CRC) Commander Wendy 

Herring for Dispatcher's Appreciation Week. 

REGULAR I 

3. Adopt a Resolution allowing the Board of Directors to consider interim candidates either 

employed or not employed by the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, as Acting City Manager. 

(BOD)  

EXECUTIVE SESSION I 

4. Adopt a Resolution appointing an Acting City Manager. (BOD)  

CONSENT 

5. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 20, 2023.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

 



 

REGULAR II 

6. Adopt a Resolution expressing the willingness of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas to utilize 

state aid street monies for the Euclid Street overlay project. (PWD) Public Works Director 

Tyler Richards 

7. Adopt a Resolution to accept the 2022 audit engagement letter prepared by the accounting 

firm FORVIS, LLP. (FIN) Finance Director TyRhonda Henderson 

8. Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a contract with Contech 

Contractors Inc., for the rehabilitation of Building #3. (ACAC) Animal Care and Adoption 

Center Director Lenor Teague 

9. Adopt an Ordinance to rename a section of Preston Street east of Interstate 49, to Magee Drive. 

(Ward 3) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

10. Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located at 5301 Sanderson Lane in Ward 6 from 

C-3 Open-display commercial zoning to R-4 Medium density residential in order to build a 

single-family dwelling (Beed). (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck  

11. Adopts an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal approval of a private club 

application for 2415 Arkansas Boulevard, Pelican Fish and Seafood, Inc. (McVay) (CCD) 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause requires a separate and 

distinct vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the 

board. (Hdbk. Const. Amend 7) 

EXECUTIVE SESSION II 

12. Adopt a Resolution reappointing Glen Greenwell and Matt Keil to the Civil Service 

Commission. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

NEXT MEETING DATE:  Monday, April 17, 2023 

ADJOURN 

 

2023 City Calendar 

Texarkana TOGA – 525 E. Broad Street - April 13th – 16th – 6AM – 2PM 

Centennial Time Capsule/Sesquicentennial Festival – Downtown – April 14th – 15th 

Penni's Purpose - Saturday, April 15th - 10AM - 8PM  

Gateway Farmers Market Spring Tailgates & Tables - Saturday, April 22nd - 8AM - 2PM 

Gateway Farmers Market Opening - Saturday, May 6th - 7AM - Noon 

Four States Auto Museum Spring Car Show - May 6th - 8AM - 4PM 

Cinco De Mayo - Saturday, May 6th - 4PM - 2AM 



 

Gateway Farmers Market First Responders Day - Saturday, May 20th - 7AM - Noon 

Be Like CJ 5K - Saturday, May 20th - 7:30AM - 10:30PM 

Gateway Farmers Market Grand Opening - Saturday, June 17th - 7AM - Noon 

Sesquicentennial Ball – July 8th 

Gateway Farmers Market National Farmers Market Week - Saturday, July 15th - 7AM - Noon 

Gateway Farmers Market Salsa Contest - Saturday, August 5th - 7AM - Noon 

Gateway Farmers Market Fall Tailgates & Tables - Saturday, September 16th - 8AM - 2PM 

Gateway Farmers Market Holiday Market - Saturday, November 18th - 10AM - 2PM 

Founders’ Week Celebration – December 4th – 10th 

 

Texarkana Rec Center Calendar 

Ageless Grace - Mondays – 2PM – 3PM 

Gym Open - Mondays, Wednesdays & Fridays – 8AM - 7PM & Saturdays - 8AM – Noon 

Dance Fitness - Tuesdays - 6PM & Saturdays - 11AM 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Presentation of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas Employee Service 

Awards. (ADMIN)  

AGENDA DATE: April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Presentation 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Presentation of employee service awards. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Employee Service Awards: 

 

Amie Moulton TWU 5 Years 

Gary Howard TWU 5 Years 

Darrell Banks TWU 5 Years 

Kyle Sharp TWU 10 Years 

Richard Walker TWU 25 Years 

Christopher Gore TAFD 5 Years 

Ruston Ueckert TAFD 20 Years 

Charles Smith TAFD 25 Years 

Claudia Phelps TAPD 20 Years 

Steven Mitchell TAPD 20 Years 

Les Munn TAPD 20 Years 

David Cornelius PWD 30 Years 
 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

N/A 

EXHIBITS: None 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution allowing the Board of Directors to consider interim 

candidates either employed or not employed by the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas, as Acting City Manager. (BOD)  

AGENDA DATE: April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors  

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

REQUEST: Allowing the Board of Directors to consider interim candidates either 

employed or not employed by the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, as 

Acting City Manager. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY:  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Board of Directors recommend approval.  

EXHIBITS: Resolution  

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, following the resignation of the City Manager of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, the City needs to appoint an Acting City Manager until a full-time 

City Manager can be hired; and  

WHEREAS, in searching for an Acting City Manager pursuant to Arkansas Code 

Annotated § 14-47-121, the Board of Directors may consider acting candidates either 

employed or not employed by the City of Texarkana, Arkansas; and 

 WHEREAS, so that there is no conflict with state law, if a City employee is 

appointed Acting City Manager, that employee’s current position shall be absorbed into the 

Acting City Manager position only for that time period which the employee is Acting City 

Manager; and  

WHEREAS, when a full-time City Manager is hired, said employee shall return to 

his or her employment status prior to being appointed Acting City Manager; and 

 WHEREAS, any Acting City Manager shall have no personnel decision power 

over any City Department Heads, such as hiring, firing, demotion, or promotion;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Acting City Manager position shall be subject to the terms 

and conditions set forth above.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of April, 2023.   

      

 _______________________________ 

         Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

APPROVED: 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution appointing an Acting City Manager. (BOD)  

AGENDA DATE: April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Board of Directors  

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

REQUEST: Appointing an Acting City Manager  

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY:  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Board of Directors recommend approval.  

EXHIBITS: Resolution  

 



RESOLUTION NO. ________ 

WHEREAS, the position of City Manager for the City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

became open on April 1, 2023; and 

 WHEREAS, the City is currently conducting a search to fill such open position; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City desires to appoint an interim person to act as City Manager 

until such position can be filled; and  

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to appoint _____________ Acting City 

Manager, to be paid at a rate of $_________________ per month; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors and _______________ will negotiate and 

enter into an employment agreement at a later date;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas that _____________ is appointed Acting City Manager and will be 

paid at a rate of $_______________ per month.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of April, 2023.   

 

 

       ___________________________ 

             Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 20, 2023.  (CCD) 

City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☐  Other☒: Minutes 

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk Department 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

REQUEST: Approval of meeting minutes. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Approval of meeting minutes 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The City Clerk recommends Board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Meeting minutes. 

 



 

 

 

Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

216 Walnut Street 

Minutes - Monday, March 20, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

 

 

Mayor Allen Brown called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

PRESENT: Mayor Allen Brown, Assistant Mayor Ward 1 Terry Roberts, Ward 2 Director Laney 

Harris, Ward 5 Director Danny Jewell, and Ward 6 Director Jeff Hart.  

ALSO PRESENT: City Manager Jay Ellington, City Attorney Joshua Potter, and Deputy City 

Clerk Jenny Narens.  

ABSENT: Director Ward 3 Steven Hollibush, Ward 4 Director Ulysses Brewer, and City Clerk 

Heather Soyars. 

Invocation given by City Manager E. Jay Ellington. 

Pledge of Allegiance led by Animal Care and Adoption Center Director Lenor Teague. 

CITIZEN COMMUNICATION 

Mayor Brown said Glen Greenwell, on behalf of the members of the Old Police Pension Fund, 

wanted to convey their appreciation to the Board for the generous contribution to their retirement 

plan.  An Old Police Pension Fund meeting was held last week and are open to the public. 

No one else came forward. 

PRESENTATION(S)  

Mayor Brown presented City Manager E. Jay Ellington a plaque of appreciation for his service to 

the City.  Mr. Ellington has resigned his position as City Manager.  He will serve until the end of 

the month, but his last day in the office will be tomorrow. 

1. Comprehensive Plan presentation given by Juliet Richey with Garver. (Admin) 

CONSENT 

Director Harris requested Item 3. Adopt a Resolution approving the Legal Services Agreement 

with City Attorney Joshua Potter. (BOD) Mayor Allen Brown, be removed from the Consent 

agenda. 

 



 

Assistant Mayor Roberts made the motion to adopt the Consent agenda, Seconded by Director 

Hart.  The motion carried and the following items were approved: 

2. Approval of the minutes of the regular meeting March 6, 2023.  (CCD) City Clerk Heather 

Soyars 

REGULAR 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington made a recommendation to Table Item 6. Adopt a Resolution 

directing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with Crossties. (ADMIN) City Manager E. 

Jay Ellington and Item 7. Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into an agreement 

with 1894, LLC., and Heritage, Heart & Arts. (ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

3. Resolution No. 2023-20 approved the Legal Services Agreement with City Attorney Joshua 

Potter. (BOD) Mayor Allen Brown 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Assistant Mayor Roberts.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

4. Resolution No. 2023-21 authorized the City Manager to enter into an engineering contract 

with A.L. Franks Engineering, Inc., for the road improvement design of County Avenue. 

(PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Assistant Mayor Roberts.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

5. Resolution No. 2023-22 authorized the City Manager to enter into a construction contract with 

Francis Excavating, LLC., for rehabilitation projects on Sanderson Lane, Jefferson Avenue, 

Stallion Drive, and Boyd Road. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

After a brief discussion, the motion to adopt the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Director Harris.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

6. TABLED - Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with 

Crossties. (ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 



 

After a brief discussion, the motion to table the resolution made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, 

Seconded by Director Harris.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

7. TABLED - Adopt a Resolution directing the City Manager to enter into an agreement with 

1894, LLC., and Heritage, Heart & Arts. (ADMIN) City Manager E. Jay Ellington 

After a brief discussion, the motion to table the resolution made by Director Hart, Seconded by 

Assistant Mayor Roberts.    

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the Mayor declared the resolution adopted. 

 

8. Ordinance No.10-2023 deleted obsolete Ordinance No. L-227. (This item was TABLED 

03/06/2023) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Director Harris, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Director Harris, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  



 

The motion carried 5-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

 

9. Ordinance No.11-2023 amended Chapter 24 – Subdivisions of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas Code of Ordinances, to set limits on road guarantee renewals. (This item was 

TABLED 03/06/2023) (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck  

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

 

10. Ordinance No. 12-2023 authorized the City Manager to purchase desktop computers, laptop 

computers, and their necessary accessories to be utilized by various departments of the City 

of Texarkana Arkansas. (TWU-IT) Information Technology Director Brandon Uselton 

After a brief discussion, the motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its first reading 

in abbreviated form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Hart. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the ordinance was read the first time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its second reading in abbreviated form 

made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 



 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the ordinance was read the second time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to suspend the rules and place the ordinance on its third and final reading in abbreviated 

form made by Assistant Mayor Roberts, Seconded by Director Harris. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the ordinance was read the third time in abbreviated form. 

Motion to adopt the ordinance made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against this ordinance. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the Mayor declared the ordinance adopted. 

An emergency clause is requested. An emergency clause requires a separate and distinct 

vote of the board and is valid only if there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the Board. 

Motion to enact the emergency clause made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor 

Roberts. 

Mayor Brown asked if anyone would like to speak for or against the emergency clause. 

No one came forward. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the Mayor declared the emergency clause enacted. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' COMMENTARY 

Director Harris asked if there were a train derailment where would the affected residents gather 

for shelter and locate family members.   

Mayor Brown said the Miller County Office of Emergency Management would be in charge if that 

were to occur.   

Director Harris said he was invited to a round table discussion with train officials to discuss the 

speed of trains through residential neighborhoods. 

Director Harris said the Board would appoint an Interim City Manager and he asked the City 

Attorney if the Interim City Manager were not a resident of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 

would it be a violation of state law. Director Harris said he found an Attorney General Opinion 

from 2015-176, which was requested by Stephanie Potter Black asked if a police chief acting as a 

full-time employee could act as Interim City Manager.  Director Harris said the opinion boiled 

down to as an Interim City Manager a department head could not regulate himself.  He asked if 

any department head could be City Manager 



 

Director Jewell said the statute was clear the Board would appoint an Acting City Manager.  He 

said anyone could be appointed Acting City Manager. 

Mayor Brown said if you name a current department head as Acting City Manager, that department 

head, that person would become immediately under the Board of Directors and act on behalf of 

the Board of Directors. 

Director Jewell said the statute was clear and in the absence of a City Manager, the Acting City 

Manager comes into play. 

Director Hart said the City already had an employee with the title of Assistant City Manager. 

Director Harris said that was the point he was getting at. 

Director Roberts said the City and employees deserve stability and that rotating employees in the 

role of Acting City Manager would not be practical. 

CITY MANAGER REPORT 

City Manager E. Jay Ellington thanked the Board for allowing him to serve the citizens and work 

with each member of the Board. 

The City did accomplish the street survey with the degrees from good streets to failed streets, but 

the City did not create a system for street repair and maintenance.  He said he presented a resolution 

in support of the increase in millage which did not pass.  He said the only way to fix our streets 

was to tax ourselves. 

He said he failed in the relationship with Miller County from the juvenile detention center to PSAP 

and our jail rates.  He said the City needed to put the past further back so there would be no pushing 

back and forth between the City and Miller County when an issue comes up. 

He said between the City and Advertising and Promotion Commission, over a million dollars have 

been invested in the Entertainment District for the Front Street Plaza.   

Federal dollars are moving forward with street improvements which were most critical. 

The City hired a new Animal Control and Adoption Center Director and opened the new facility 

which were both pluses for the City. 

The Board has helped him improve cooperative relationships with the Texas-side and Bi-State 

partners. 

He said City service contracts and agreements now have a Consumer Price Index (CPI) included. 

The City established a Parks and Recreation Department and put a Director in place. 

Over the last couple of years, the City has had stable budgets. 

He said the City had a great group of department heads and a great group of employees. 



 

He said he was able to hire a new Police Chief to help with our policing within the community. 

Mayor Brown wished City Manager E. Jay Ellington and his wife Kathy good luck in Virginia. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The Board of Directors did not enter Executive Session. 

NEXT MEETING DATE: Monday, April 3, 2023 

ADJOURN 

Motion to adjourn made by Director Hart, Seconded by Assistant Mayor Roberts.  

Voting Yea: Mayor Brown, Assistant Mayor Roberts, Director Harris, Director Jewell, and 

Director Hart.  

The motion carried 5-0 and the meeting adjourned at 7:09 PM. 

APPROVED this the 3rd day of April 2023. 

 

____________________________ 

Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

____________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution expressing the willingness of the City of Texarkana, 

Arkansas to utilize state aid street monies for the Euclid Street overlay 

project. (PWD) Public Works Director Tyler Richards 

AGENDA DATE: 04/03/2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works Department 

PREPARED BY: Tracie Lee, Assistant Public Works Director 

REQUEST: Adopt a Resolution Expressing the Willingness of the City of Texarkana 

to Utilize State Aid Street Monies for Euclid Street Overlay. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: This item will be approved by a resolution; therefore, it will not need an 

emergency clause. 

SUMMARY: A resolution expressing the willingness of the City of Texarkana to 

utilize State Aid Street Monies for Euclid Street Overlay in the amount 

of $300,000.  The project is estimated to be $375,000 of which the city 

will be responsible for $75,000.  Current ARPA Road project bids came 

in under budget approximately $200,000.00.   

To cover the City’s match and possible contingencies city manager and 

staff would like to reallocate a portion of the ARPA funding from these 

projects to the Euclid Street overlay project.   

If the project bids come in over $375,000 the City will be responsible for 

all expenses over the $300,000 as State Aid Monies will only cover 

$300,000 of the construction cost. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $100,000.00 ($75,000 match, $25,000 contingencies) 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $0.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$100,000.00 (ARPA Funds) 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Interim City Manager and staff recommend board approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, & Arkansas State Aid Street Committee Letter. 

 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

STATE AID CITY STREET PROGRAM PROJECT RESOLUTION 

 

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING THE WILLINGNESS OF THE 

CITY OF TEXARKANA TO UTILIZE STATE AID STREET 

MONIES FOR THE FOLLOWING CITY PROJECT: 

 

Texarkana Euclid St. Overlay 

WHEREAS, the City of TEXARKANA understands that State Aid Street Program 

funds are available for certain city projects at the following participating ratios: 

 
 Work Phase State Aid % City % 

Reconstruction/Resurfacing Preliminary Engineering 100% -0- 

Construction of City Projects Right-of-Way -0- 100% 

 Utilities -0- 100% 

 Construction 90% 10% 

 Construction Engineering 100% -0- 

    

City projects programmed but 

not let to contract 

All Phases -0- 100% 

      

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that: 

 SECTION I: The City will participate in accordance with its designated 

responsibilities in this project.  

 SECTION II:  The Acting City Manager, or his designee, is hereby authorized to 

execute all appropriate agreements and contracts necessary to expedite the construction of 

this City project.  



 SECTION III:  The City agrees upon completion of the project to assume the 

maintenance of the right-of-way by City Forces and/or others including utilities and 

individuals in accordance with the prevailing Arkansas Department of Transportation 

regulations.  

 SECTION IV:  The City pledges its full support and hereby authorizes the 

Arkansas Department of Transportation to initiate action to implement this project.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of April, 2023.   

 

       ______________________________ 

        Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 





 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution to accept the 2022 audit engagement letter prepared 

by the accounting firm FORVIS, LLP. (FIN) Finance Director 

TyRhonda Henderson 

AGENDA DATE: April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Finance Department 

PREPARED BY: TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director  

REQUEST: N/A 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: This item is to approve a letter of engagement with the firm FORVIS, 

LLP to conduct the City of Texarkana, Arkansas’ and the Bi-State 

Justice Center’s 2022 Annual Audit and preparation of the Annual 

Comprehensive Financial Report. They are experienced in conducting 

Government Audits and are also used by other cities within the state of 

Arkansas as well as other cities throughout the United States. The fee for 

their services is $110,000 for audits of the financial statements for the 

City and BiState, with additional fees of $5,500 for one major program 

audited under Uniform Guidance and $3,000 to $5,000 for testing the 

implementation of GASB 87. The City Manager and Finance Director 

recommend approving a one-year letter of engagement. The one-year 

engagement is a 6.3% increase from 2021 to 2022. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $120,500 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $114,000 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$6,500 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Interim City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Engagement Letter  

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 
 

WHEREAS, the firm FORVIS, LLP, has submitted a letter of engagement to 

conduct annual audits for the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, and the Bi-State Justice Center 

for 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, FORVIS, LLP, has experience with conducting such audits and 

similar governmental audits, including audits for other cities within the state of Arkansas 

and throughout the United States; and  

 WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and Finance Director recommend approving 

a one-year engagement with a 6.2% increase from 2022 for $110,000.00, $5,500.00 for the 

anticipated one major program audited under Uniform Guidance, and $3,000.00 to 

$5,000.00 for testing the implementation of GASB 87 depending on the time expended; 

and  

 WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and staff recommend board approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Acting City Manager is authorized and directed to enter 

into a letter of engagement with FORVIS, LLP in an amount not to exceed $120,500.00.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of April, 2023.   

 

       ______________________________ 

            Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

APPROVED: 

 

_______________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



 

 

 
 
 
 
March 16, 2023 
 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Board of Directors 
Mr. E. J. Ellington, City Manager 
Ms. TyRhonda Henderson, Finance Director 
CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS  
216 Walnut Street 
Texarkana, Arkansas 71854-6065 
 
 
We appreciate your selection of FORVIS, LLP as your service provider and are pleased to confirm the 
arrangements of our engagement in this contract. Within the requirements of our professional standards 
and any duties owed to the public, regulatory, or other authorities, our goal is to provide you an Unmatched 
Client Experience 
 
In addition to the terms set forth in this contract, including the detailed Scope of Services, our engagement 
is governed by the following, incorporated fully by this reference: 
 

 Terms and Conditions Addendum3F 

Summary Scope of Services 

As described in the attached Scope of Services, our services will include the following:4F 
 
 CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 

 Audit Services for the year ended December 31, 2022 
 Attestation Examination Services for the year ended December 31, 2022 

 
 BI-STATE JUSTICE CENTER (the Center) 

 Audit Services for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
You agree to assume full responsibility for the substantive outcomes of the contracted services and for any 
other services we may provide, including any findings that may result. 
 
You also acknowledge these services are adequate for your purposes, and you will establish and monitor 
the performance of these services to ensure they meet management’s objectives. All decisions involving 
management responsibilities related to these services will be made by you, and you accept full responsibility 
for such decisions. 
 
We understand you have designated a management-level individual(s) to be responsible and accountable 
for overseeing the performance of nonattest services, and you have determined this individual is qualified 
to conduct such oversight. 
 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 2 
 

 

Engagement Fees 

The fee for our services will be $110,000 for the audits of the financial statements of the City and the Center, 
and $5,500 for anticipated one major program under Uniform Guidance.  The additional fee for testing the 
implementation of GASB 87 is expected to be $3,000 to $5,000 based on time expended. 
 
The above fees include travel costs and fees for services from other professionals, if any, as well as an 
administrative fee of five (5) percent to cover certain technology and administrative costs associated with 
our services.  
 
Our pricing for this engagement and our fee structure are based upon the expectation that our invoices will 
be paid promptly. Payment of our invoices is due upon receipt 
 
Our timely completion of services and the fees thereon depends on the assistance you provide us in 
accumulating information and responding to our inquiries. Inaccuracies or delays in providing this 
information or the responses may result in additional billings, untimely filings, or inability to meet other 
deadlines. If there are changes in circumstances where these or other conditions become known and 
significant additional time is necessary or additional services are requested, we reserve the right to revise 
our fees. 

Assistance with New StandardsF 

Assistance and additional time as a result of the adoption of the following new standards are not included 
within our standard engagement fees. These fees will be based on time expended and will vary based on 
the level of assistance and procedures required.  
 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 87, Leases, is effective for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2021. Early application is encouraged.  
 
Statement No. 87 establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that 
leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to 
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize 
a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources. We can assist you with the adoption by providing 
services which may include, but are not limited to: 
 

 Assessing your readiness by assisting with the evaluation of your: 
o Current controls and policies 
o Current internal resources and system capabilities 

 Assisting with changes required to adopt Statement No. 87, including: 
o Recommending enhancements to existing controls and policies or suggesting new controls 

and policies to address Statement No. 87 
o Documenting any changes from your previous lease recognition and reporting methods 
o Drafting the required disclosures 

 
The time it will take to perform the above assistance and our additional audit procedures relating to the 
adoption of the Statement, and any time to assist you with the adoption, may be minimized to the extent 
your personnel will be available to provide timely and accurate documentation and information as requested 
by us. 
 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 3 

Contract Agreement 

Please sign and return this contract to indicate your acknowledgment of, and agreement with, the 
arrangements for our services including our respective responsibilities.  

FORVIS, LLP 

Acknowledged and agreed to as it relates to the entire contract, including the Scope of Services and 
Terms and Conditions Addendum, on behalf of CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS and BI-STATE 
JUSTICE CENTER. 

BY  
 Allen L. Brown, Mayor  

DATE  

BY  
  

DATE  



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 4 
 

 

Scope of Services – Audit Services 

We will audit the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component unit, each major 
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information and related disclosures, which collectively comprise 
the basic financial statements for the following entity(ies): 
 
 CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
  
 BI-STATE JUSTICE CENTER as of and for the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
The audit has the following broad objectives: 
 

 Obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

 Expressing opinions on the financial statements 
 Issuing a report on your internal control over financial reporting and compliance and other matters 

based on the audit of your financial statements in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 Expressing an opinion on your compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in 

the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect to each of your major 
federal award programs in accordance with the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) 

 Issuing a report on your internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance 
 Issuing a report on your schedule of expenditures of federal awards 11 

 
You have informed us that the audited financial statements are expected to be presented along with 
management’s Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). Management is responsible for the other 
information included in the ACFR. The other information comprises the ACFR but does not include the 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements will not cover 
the other information, and we will not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon. In connection 
with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider 
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial statements, or 
whether the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are 
required to describe it in our report. 13F 
 
We will also express an opinion on whether the combining and individual fund statements and budgetary 
comparison schedules (“supplementary information”) are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to 
the financial statements as a whole.16F 
 
We will complete the auditee portion of the Form SF-SAC (Data Collection Form) through the Federal Audit 
Clearinghouse. We will not make the submission on your behalf. You will review a draft(s) of the submission 
prior to transmission and agree that you are solely responsible for approving the final draft for transmission 
as well as for the auditee submission and certification. 
 
We will also provide you with the following nonattest services: 17F 

 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 Preparing a draft of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. 
 

 Assisting with printing and processing of the final report 
 
  



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 5 
 

 

You agree to assume all management responsibilities and to oversee the nonattest services we will provide 
by designating an individual possessing suitable skill, knowledge, and/or experience. You acknowledge 
that nonattest services are not covered under Government Auditing Standards. You are responsible for: 
 

 Making all management decisions and performing all management functions 
 Evaluating the adequacy and results of the services performed 
 Accepting responsibility for the results of such services 
 Designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities 

 
Cynthia Burns, Director, is responsible for supervising the engagement and authorizing the signing of the 
report or reports. 
 
We will issue written reports upon completion of our audit(s), addressed to the following parties:  
 
Entity Name Party Name 
CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS Honorable Mayor, City Manager, and Members of 

the Board of Directors 
BI-STATE JUSTICE CENTER Intergovernmental Advisory Committee 

 
You are responsible to distribute our reports to other officials who have legal oversight authority or those 
responsible for acting on audit findings and recommendations, and to others authorized to receive such 
reports. 
 
The following apply for the audit services described above: 
 
Our  
Responsibilities 19F 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States and the Uniform Guidance. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform: 
 
 The audit of the financial statements to obtain reasonable rather than 

absolute assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error  

 The audit of compliance to obtain reasonable rather than absolute assurance 
about whether the entity complied with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each major federal award program 

 
We will exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. 
 
We will identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures 
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
We will obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. 
 
We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 6 
 

 

 
We will also conclude, based on audit evidence obtained, whether there are 
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt 
about the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period 
of time. 
 
We will identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to 
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. 
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the 
entity’s compliance with compliance requirements subject to audit and performing 
such other procedures as the auditor considers necessary in the circumstances. 
 
We will obtain an understanding of the entity’s internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in 
accordance with the Uniform Guidance but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over compliance. 
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 
 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance, regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any 
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over 
compliance that the auditor identified during the audit. 
 

Limitations &  
Fraud 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit that is planned and conducted in 
accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement or material 
noncompliance with federal award programs when it exists. Misstatements, 
including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 
there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would 
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our 
audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as 
auditors. 
 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement or material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Noncompliance with compliance requirements is 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about the entity’s compliance with the requirements of the 
federal programs as a whole. 
 
Our understanding of internal control is not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of your internal control. However, we will 
communicate to you in writing any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses 
in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we identify 
during the audit. 
 
We are available to perform additional procedures with regard to fraud detection 
and prevention at your request, subject to completion of our normal engagement 
acceptance procedures. The actual terms and fees of such an engagement would 
be documented in a separate contract to be signed by you and FORVIS. 
 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 7 
 

 

Opinion Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ from its expected form 
and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these 
circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinion, add an 
emphasis-of-matter paragraph or other-matter paragraph(s) to our auditor’s 
report, or if necessary, decline to express an opinion or withdraw from the 
engagement. 
 
If we discover conditions that may prohibit us from issuing a standard report, we 
will notify you. In such circumstances, further arrangements may be necessary to 
continue our engagement. 

  
Your  
Responsibilities 

Management and, if applicable, those charged with governance acknowledge 
and understand their responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of all 
information provided and for the following: 
 
 Audit Support – to provide us with: 

o Unrestricted access to persons within the entity or within components of 
the entity (including management, those charged with governance, and 
component auditors) from whom we determine it necessary to obtain 
audit evidence 

o Information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements, including access to 
information relevant to disclosures 

o Information about events occurring or facts discovered subsequent to the 
date of the financial statements, of which management may become 
aware, that may affect the financial statements 

o Information about any known or suspected fraud affecting the entity 
involving management, employees with significant role in internal control, 
and others where fraud could have a material effect on the financials 

o Identification and provision of report copies of previous audits, attestation 
engagements, or other studies that directly relate to the objectives of the 
audit, including whether related recommendations have been 
implemented 

o Additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audit 
 
 Internal Control and Compliance – for the: 

o Design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to 
compliance with laws and regulations and the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

o Alignment of internal control to ensure that appropriate goals and 
objectives are met; that management and financial information is reliable 
and properly reported; and that compliance with and identification of the 
laws, regulations, contracts, grants, or agreements (including any federal 
award programs) applicable to the entity’s activities is achieved 

o Remedy, through timely and appropriate steps, of fraud and 
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or other 
agreements reported by the auditor 

o Establishment and maintenance of processes to track the status and 
address findings and recommendations of auditors 

 
 Accounting and Reporting – for the: 

o Maintenance of adequate records, selection and application of 
accounting principles, and the safeguard of assets 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 8 
 

 

o Adjustment of the financial statements to correct material misstatements 
and confirmation to us in the representation letter that the effects of any 
uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us are immaterial, both 
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a 
whole 

o Preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (or other basis if indicated in the contract) 

o Inclusion of the auditors’ report in any document containing financial 
statements that indicates that such financial statements have been 
audited by us 

o Distribution of audit reports to any necessary parties 
 
The results of our tests of compliance and internal control over financial reporting 
performed in connection with our audit of the financial statements may not fully 
meet the reasonable needs of report users. Management is responsible for 
obtaining audits, examinations, agreed-upon procedures, or other engagements 
that satisfy relevant legal, regulatory, or contractual requirements or fully meet 
other reasonable user needs. 

 
Required  
Supplementary 
Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America provide 
for certain required supplementary information (“RSI”) to accompany the basic 
financial statements. We understand the following RSI will accompany the basic 
financial statements: 
 
1. Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) 
2. Budgetary comparison 
3. Pension and Other Postemployment Benefit information 
  
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of 
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. 
 
Management is responsible for the fair presentation of the RSI. As part of our 
engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the RSI in GAAS. These 
limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods 
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  
 
We will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 

Supplementary 
Information 

With regard to any supplementary information that we are engaged to report on:  
 
 Management is responsible for its preparation in accordance with applicable 

criteria 
 Management will provide certain written representations regarding the 

supplementary information at the conclusion of our engagement 
 Management will include our report on this supplementary information in any 

document that contains this supplementary information and indicates we 
have reported on the supplementary information 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 9 
 

 

 Management will make the supplementary information readily available to 
intended users if it is not presented with the audited financial statements 

 
Such information is: 
 
 Presented for the purpose of additional analysis of the financial statements  
 Not a required part of the financial statements 
 The responsibility of management 
 Subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial 

statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS 

 
Written 
Confirmations 
Required 

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, if applicable, 
those charged with governance written confirmation acknowledging certain 
responsibilities outlined in this contract and confirming: 
 
 The availability of this information 
 Certain representations made during the audit for all periods presented 
 The effects of any uncorrected misstatements, if any, resulting from errors or 

fraud aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the 
latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, 
to the financial statements taken as a whole 

 
Peer Review 
Report 

Government Auditing Standards require that we provide you with a copy of our 
most recent external peer review report and any letter of comment, and any 
subsequent peer review reports and letters of comment received during the 
period of the contract, upon request. If you would like a copy, please request from 
your engagement executive. 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 10 
 

 

Attestation Examination Services 

We will examine the written assertion made by management that the City complied with certain state acts 
during the year ended December 31, 2022. 
 
The objective of our examination is the expression of an opinion in a written report about whether the 
responsible party’s assertion is fairly stated in all material respects with the applicable criteria against 
which it is measured or evaluated. 
 
The criteria to be used consist of the requirements of Arkansas Act 15 of 1985 and the following Arkansas 
statutes: 
 
 Arkansas Municipal Accounting Law of 1973, § 14-59-101 et seq.; 

 Arkansas District Courts and City Courts Accounting Law, § 16-10-201 et seq.; 

 Improve contracts, §§ 22-9-202 – 22-9-204 

 Budgets, purchases, and payments of claims, etc., § 14-58-201 et seq. and § 14-58-301 et seq.; 

 Investment of public funds, § 19-1-501 et seq.; and 

 Deposit of public funds, §§ 19-8-101 – 19-8-107 
 
The following apply for the attestation examination services described above: 

 
Our Responsibilities We will conduct our examination in accordance with attestation standards 

established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.  Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the examination to obtain reasonable 
rather than absolute assurance about whether the subject matter as measured 
or evaluated against the criteria is free of material misstatement. 
 
If we discover conditions that may prohibit us from issuing a standard report, we 
will notify you.  In such circumstances, further arrangements may be necessary 
to continue our engagement. 
 

Limitations & Fraud Because of the inherent limitations of an examination engagement, together with 
the inherent limitations of internal control, an unavoidable risk that some material 
misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the examination is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with the attestation standards. 
 
Our engagement will not include a detailed examination of every transaction and 
cannot be relied on to disclose all errors, fraud, or illegal acts that may exist.  
However, we will inform you of any such matters, if material, that come to our 
attention. 
 

Report We cannot provide assurance that an unmodified opinion will be expressed.  
Circumstances may arise in which it is necessary for us to modify our opinion or 
withdraw from the engagement.  If we discover conditions which may prohibit us 
from issuing a standard examination report, we will notify you.  In such 
circumstances, further arrangements may be necessary to continue our 
engagement. 
 

Your 
Responsibilities 

 

To facilitate our engagement, management is responsible for providing a written 
assertion about the measurement or evaluation of the subject matter against the 
criteria, supplying us with all necessary information, and for allowing us access 
to personnel to assist in performing our services.  It should be understood that 
management is responsible for the accuracy and completeness of these items, 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 11 
 

 

for the subject matter and the written assertion(s) referred to above, and for 
selecting and determining the appropriateness of the criteria. 
 
At the conclusion of our engagement, management will provide to us a letter 
confirming these responsibilities, whether it is aware of any material 
misstatements in the subject matter or assertion, and that it has disclosed all 
known events subsequent to the period (or point in time) of the subject matter 
being reported on that would have a material effect on the subject matter or 
assertion. 
 
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal 
control over financial reporting and setting the proper tone; creating and 
maintaining a culture of honesty and high ethical standards; and establishing 
appropriate controls to prevent, deter, and detect fraud and illegal acts.  
Management is also responsible for identifying and ensuring compliance with the 
laws and regulations applicable to your activities and for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance. 
 

 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 12 
 

 

FORVIS, LLP Terms and Conditions Addendum 

GENERAL 
1. Overview. This addendum describes FORVIS LLP’s standard 

terms and conditions (“Terms and Conditions”) applicable to 
Our provision of services to the Client (“You”). The Terms and 
Conditions are a part of the contract between You and FORVIS, 
LLP. For the purposes of the Terms and Conditions, any 
reference to “Firm,” “We,” “Us,” or “Our” is a reference to 
FORVIS, LLP (“FORVIS”), and any reference to “You” or “Your” 
is a reference to the party or parties that have engaged Us to 
provide services and the party or parties ultimately responsible 
for payment of Our fees and costs. 

BILLING, PAYMENT, & TERMINATION 
2. Billing and Payment Terms. We will bill You for Our 

professional fees and costs as outlined in Our contract. Unless 
otherwise provided in Our contract, payment is due upon 
receipt of Our billing statement. Interest will be charged on any 
unpaid balance after 30 days at the rate of 10 percent per 
annum, or as allowed by law at the earliest date thereafter, and 
highest applicable rate if less than 10 percent. All fees, charges, 
and other amounts payable to FORVIS hereunder do not 
include any sales, use, excise, value-added, or other applicable 
taxes, tariffs, or duties, payment of which shall be Your sole 
responsibility, and do not include any applicable taxes based 
on FORVIS’ net income or taxes arising from the employment 
or independent contractor relationship between FORVIS and 
FORVIS’ personnel. 

We reserve the right to suspend or terminate Our work for this 
engagement or any other engagement for nonpayment of fees. 
If Our work is suspended or terminated, You agree that We will 
not be responsible for Your failure to meet governmental and 
other deadlines, for any penalties or interest that may be 
assessed against You resulting from Your failure to meet such 
deadlines, and for any other damages (including but not limited 
to consequential, indirect, lost profits, or punitive damages) 
incurred as a result of the suspension or termination of Our 
services. 
Our fees may increase if Our duties or responsibilities are 
increased by rulemaking of any regulatory body or any 
additional new accounting or auditing standards. Our 
engagement fees do not include any time for post-engagement 
consultation with Your personnel or third parties, consent 
letters and related procedures for the use of Our reports in 
offering documents, inquiries from regulators, or testimony or 
deposition regarding any subpoena. Charges for such services 
will be billed separately. 

3. Billing Records. If these services are determined to be within 
the scope and authority of Section 1861(v)(1)(I) of the Social 
Security Act, We agree to make available to the Secretary of 
Health and Human Services, or to the U.S. Comptroller 
General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, such 
of Our books, documents, and records that are necessary to 
certify the nature and extent of Our services, until the expiration 
of four (4) years after the furnishing of these services. This 
contract allows access to contracts of a similar nature between 
subcontractors and related organizations of the subcontractor, 
and to their books, documents, and records. 

4. Termination. Either party may terminate these services in 
good faith at any time for any reason, including Your failure to 
comply with the terms of Our contract or as We determine 
professional standards require. Both parties must agree, in 
writing, to any future modifications or extensions. If services are 
terminated, You agree to pay FORVIS for time expended to 
date. In addition, You will be billed costs and fees for services 
from other professionals, if any, as well as an administrative fee 
of five (5) percent to cover certain technology and 
administrative costs associated with Our services. Unless 
terminated sooner in accordance with its terms, this 
engagement shall terminate upon the completion of FORVIS’ 
services hereunder. 

DISPUTES & DISCLAIMERS 
5. Mediation. Any dispute arising out of or related to this 

engagement will, prior to resorting to litigation, be submitted for 
nonbinding mediation upon written request by either party. Both 
parties agree to try in good faith to settle the dispute in 
mediation. The mediator will be selected by agreement of the 
parties. The mediation proceeding shall be confidential. Each 
party will bear its own costs in the mediation, but the fees and 
expenses of the mediator will be shared equally. 

6. Indemnification. Unless disallowed by law or applicable 
professional standards, You agree to hold FORVIS harmless 
from any and all claims which arise from knowing 
misrepresentations to FORVIS, or the intentional withholding or 
concealment of information from FORVIS by Your 
management or any partner, principal, shareholder, officer, 
director, member, employee, agent, or assign of Yours. You 
also agree to indemnify FORVIS for any claims made against 
FORVIS by third parties, which arise from any wrongful actions 
of Your management or any partner, principal, shareholder, 
officer, director, member, employee, agent, or assign of Yours. 
The provisions of this paragraph shall apply regardless of the 
nature of the claim. 

7. Statute of Limitations. You agree that any claim or legal 
action arising out of or related to this contract and the services 
provided hereunder shall be commenced no more than one (1) 
year from the date of delivery of the work product to You or the 
termination of the services described herein (whichever is 
earlier), regardless of any statute of limitations prescribing a 
longer period of time for commencing such a claim under law. 
This time limitation shall apply regardless of whether FORVIS 
performs other or subsequent services for You. A claim is 
understood to be a demand for money or services, demand for 
mediation, or the service of suit based on a breach of this 
contract or the acts or omissions of FORVIS in performing the 
services provided herein. This provision shall not apply if 
enforcement is disallowed by applicable law or professional 
standards. 

8. Limitation of Liability. You agree that FORVIS’ liability, if any, 
arising out of or related to this contract and the services 
provided hereunder, shall be limited to the amount of the fees 
paid by You for services rendered under this contract. This 
limitation shall not apply to the extent it is finally, judicially 
determined that the liability resulted from the intentional or 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 13 
 

 

willful misconduct of FORVIS or if enforcement of this provision 
is disallowed by applicable law or professional standards. 

9. Waiver of Certain Damages. In no event shall FORVIS be 
liable to You or a third party for any indirect, special, 
consequential, punitive, or exemplary damages, including but 
not limited to lost profits, loss of revenue, interruption, loss of 
use, damage to goodwill or reputation, regardless of whether 
You were advised of the possibility of such damages, 
regardless of whether such damages were reasonably 
foreseeable, and regardless of whether such damages arise 
under a theory of contract, tort, strict liability, or otherwise. 

10. Choice of Law. You acknowledge and agree that any dispute 
arising out of or related to this contract shall be governed by the 
laws of the State of Texas, without regard to its conflict of laws 
principles. 

11. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL. THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE 
NOT TO ELECT A TRIAL BY JURY OF ANY ISSUE TRIABLE 
OF RIGHT BY JURY, AND WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY 
JURY FULLY TO THE EXTENT THAT ANY SUCH RIGHT 
SHALL NOW OR HEREAFTER EXIST WITH REGARD TO 
THIS AGREEMENT, OR ANY CLAIM, COUNTERCLAIM, OR 
OTHER ACTION ARISING IN CONNECTION THEREWITH. 
THIS WAIVER OF RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IS GIVEN 
KNOWINGLY AND VOLUNTARILY BY THE PARTIES, AND 
IS INTENDED TO ENCOMPASS INDIVIDUALLY EACH 
INSTANCE AND EACH ISSUE AS TO WHICH THE RIGHT 
TO A TRIAL BY JURY WOULD OTHERWISE ACCRUE. 

12. Severability. In the event that any term or provision of this 
agreement shall be held to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, 
then the remainder of this agreement shall not be affected, and 
each such term and provision of this agreement shall be valid 
and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

13. Assignment. You acknowledge and agree that the terms and 
conditions of this contract shall be binding upon and inure to 
the parties’ successors and assigns, subject to applicable laws 
and regulations. 

14. Disclaimer of Legal or Investment Advice. Our services do 
not constitute legal or investment advice. 

RECORDS, WORKPAPERS, DELIVERABLES, & 
PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 
15. Maintenance of Records. You agree to assume full 

responsibility for maintaining Your original data and records 
and that FORVIS has no responsibility to maintain this 
information. You agree You will not rely on FORVIS to provide 
hosting, electronic security, or backup services, e.g., business 
continuity or disaster recovery services, to You unless 
separately engaged to do so. You understand that Your access 
to data, records, and information from FORVIS’ servers, i.e., 
FORVIS portals used to exchange information, can be 
terminated at any time and You will not rely on using this to host 
Your data and records. 

16. FORVIS Workpapers. Our workpapers and documentation 
retained in any form of media for this engagement are the 
property of FORVIS. We can be compelled to provide 
information under legal process. In addition, We may be 

requested by regulatory or enforcement bodies (including any 
State Board) to make certain workpapers available to them 
pursuant to authority granted by law or regulation. Unless We 
are prohibited from doing so by law or regulation, FORVIS will 
inform You of any such legal process or request. You agree We 
have no legal responsibility to You in the event We determine 
We are obligated to provide such documents or information.  

17. Subpoenas or Other Legal Process. In the event FORVIS is 
required to respond to any such subpoena, court order, or any 
government regulatory inquiry or other legal process relating to 
You or Your management for the production of documents 
and/or testimony relative to information We obtained or 
prepared incident to this or any other engagement in a matter 
in which FORVIS is not a party, You shall compensate FORVIS 
for all time We expend in connection with such response at 
normal and customary hourly rates and to reimburse Us for all 
out-of-pocket expenses incurred in regard to such response. 

18. Use of Deliverables and Drafts. You agree You will not modify 
any deliverables or drafts prepared by Us for internal use or for 
distribution to third parties. You also understand that We may 
on occasion send You documents marked as draft and 
understand that those are for Your review purpose only, should 
not be distributed in any way, and should be destroyed as soon 
as possible. 

Our report on any financial statements must be associated only 
with the financial statements that were the subject of Our 
engagement. You may make copies of Our report, but only if 
the entire financial statements (exactly as attached to Our 
report, including related footnotes) and any supplementary 
information, as appropriate, are reproduced and distributed 
with Our report. You agree not to reproduce or associate Our 
report with any other financial statements, or portions thereof, 
that are not the subject of Our engagement. 

19. Proprietary Information. You acknowledge that proprietary 
information, documents, materials, management techniques, 
and other intellectual property are a material source of the 
services We perform and were developed prior to Our 
association with You. Any new forms, software, documents, or 
intellectual property We develop during this engagement for 
Your use shall belong to Us, and You shall have the limited right 
to use them solely within Your business. All reports, templates, 
manuals, forms, checklists, questionnaires, letters, 
agreements, and other documents which We make available to 
You are confidential and proprietary to Us. Neither You, nor any 
of Your agents, will copy, electronically store, reproduce, or 
make any such documents available to anyone other than Your 
personnel. This provision will apply to all materials whether in 
digital, “hard copy” format, or other medium. 

REGULATORY 
20. U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and 

other Regulatory Bodies. Where We are providing services 
either for (a) an entity that is registered with the SEC, (b) an 
affiliate of such registrant, or (c) an entity or affiliate that is 
subject to rules, regulations, or standards beyond those of the 
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”), 
any term of this contract that would be prohibited by or impair 
Our independence under applicable law or regulation shall not 
apply to the extent necessary only to avoid such prohibition or 
impairment. 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 14 
 

 

21. Offering Document. You may wish to include Our report(s) on 
financial statements in an exempt offering document. You 
agree that any report, including any auditor’s report, or 
reference to Our firm, will not be included in any such offering 
document without notifying Us. Any agreement to perform work 
in connection with an exempt offering document, including 
providing agreement for the use of the auditor’s report in the 
exempt offering document, will be a separate engagement. 

Any exempt offering document issued by You with which We 
are not involved will clearly indicate that We are not involved by 
including a disclosure such as, “FORVIS, LLP, our independent 
auditor, has not been engaged to perform and has not 
performed, since the date of its report included herein, any 
procedures on the financial statements addressed in that 
report. FORVIS, LLP also has not performed any procedures 
relating to this offering document.” 

22. FORVIS Not a Municipal Advisor. FORVIS is not acting as 
Your municipal advisor under Section 15B of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. As such, FORVIS is not 
recommending any action to You and does not owe You a 
fiduciary duty with respect to any information or 
communications regarding municipal financial products or the 
issuance of municipal securities. You should discuss such 
matters with internal or external advisors and experts You 
deem appropriate before acting on any such information or 
material provided by FORVIS. 

23. FORVIS Not a Fiduciary. In providing Our attest services, We 
are required by law and our professional standards to maintain 
our independence from You. We take this mandate very 
seriously and thus guard against impermissible relationships 
which may impair the very independence which You and the 
users of Our report require. As such, You should not place upon 
Us special confidence that in the performance of Our attest 
services We will act solely in Your interest. Therefore, You 
acknowledge and agree We are not in a fiduciary relationship 
with You and We have no fiduciary responsibilities to You in the 
performance of Our services described herein. 

TECHNOLOGY 
24. Electronic Sites. You agree to notify Us if You desire to place 

Our report(s), including any reports on Your financial 
statements, along with other information, such as a report by 
management or those charged with governance on operations, 
financial summaries or highlights, financial ratios, etc., on an 
electronic site. You recognize that We have no responsibility to 
review information contained in electronic sites. 

25. Electronic Signatures and Counterparts. This contract and 
other documents to be delivered pursuant to this contract may 
be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be 
deemed to be an original copy and all of which, when taken 
together, will be deemed to constitute one and the same 
agreement or document, and will be effective when 
counterparts have been signed by each of the parties and 
delivered to the other parties. Each party agrees that the 
electronic signatures, whether digital or encrypted, of the 
parties included in this contract are intended to authenticate 
this writing and to have the same force and effect as manual 
signatures. Delivery of a copy of this contract or any other 
document contemplated hereby, bearing an original manual or 
electronic signature by facsimile transmission (including a 

facsimile delivered via the internet), by electronic mail in 
“portable document format” (“.pdf”) or similar format intended 
to preserve the original graphic and pictorial appearance of a 
document, or through the use of electronic signature software, 
will have the same effect as physical delivery of the paper 
document bearing an original signature. 

26. Electronic Data Communication and Storage. In the interest 
of facilitating Our services to You, We may send data over the 
internet, temporarily store electronic data via computer 
software applications hosted remotely on the internet, or utilize 
cloud-based storage. Your confidential electronic data may be 
transmitted or stored using these methods. In using these data 
communication and storage methods, We employ measures 
designed to maintain data security. We use reasonable efforts 
to keep such communications and electronic data secure in 
accordance with Our obligations under applicable laws, 
regulations, and professional standards. 

You recognize and accept that We have no control over the 
unauthorized interception or breach of any communications or 
electronic data once it has been transmitted or if it has been 
subject to unauthorized access while stored, notwithstanding 
all reasonable security measures employed by Us. You 
consent to Our use of these electronic devices and applications 
during this engagement. 

OTHER MATTERS 
27. Cooperation. You agree to cooperate with FORVIS in the 

performance of FORVIS’ services to You, including the 
provision to FORVIS of reasonable facilities and timely access 
to Your data, information, and personnel. You shall be 
responsible for the performance of Your employees and 
agents. 

28. Third-Party Service Providers. FORVIS may from time to 
time utilize third-party service providers, including but not 
limited to domestic software processors or legal counsel, or 
disclose confidential information about You to third-party 
service providers in serving Your account. FORVIS maintains, 
however, internal policies, procedures, and safeguards to 
protect the confidentiality and security of Your information. In 
addition, FORVIS will secure confidentiality agreements with all 
service providers to maintain the confidentiality of Your 
information. If We are unable to secure an appropriate 
confidentiality agreement, You will be asked to consent prior to 
FORVIS sharing Your confidential information with the third-
party service provider. 

29. Independent Contractor. When providing services to You, We 
will be functioning as an independent contractor; and in no 
event will We or any of Our employees be an officer of You, nor 
will Our relationship be that of joint venturers, partners, 
employer and employee, principal and agent, or any similar 
relationship giving rise to a fiduciary duty to You. Decisions 
regarding management of Your business remain the 
responsibility of Your personnel at all times. Neither You nor 
FORVIS shall act or represent itself, directly or by implication, 
as an agent of the other or in any manner assume or create any 
obligation on behalf of, or in the name of, the other. 

30. Use of FORVIS Name. Any time You intend to reference 
FORVIS’ firm name in any manner in any published materials, 



CITY OF TEXARKANA, ARKANSAS 
March 16, 2023 

Page 15 
 

 

including on an electronic site, You agree to provide Us with 
draft materials for review and approval before publishing or 
posting such information. 

31. Praxity. FORVIS is an independent accounting firm allowed to 
use the name “Praxity” in relation to its practice. FORVIS is not 
connected, however, by ownership with any other firm using the 
name “Praxity.” FORVIS will be solely responsible for all work 
carried out on Your behalf. In deciding to engage FORVIS, You 
acknowledge that We have not represented to You that any 
other firm using the name “Praxity” will in any way be 
responsible for Our work. 

32. Entire Agreement. The contract, including this Terms and 
Conditions Addendum and any other attachments or addenda, 
encompasses the entire agreement between You and FORVIS 
and supersedes all previous understandings and agreements 
between the parties, whether oral or written. Any modification 
to the terms of this contract must be made in writing and signed 
by both You and FORVIS. 

33. Force Majeure. We shall not be held responsible for any failure 
to fulfill Our obligations if such failure was caused by 
circumstances beyond Our control, including, without limitation, 
fire or other casualty, act of God, act of terrorism, strike or labor 
dispute, war or other violence, explosion, flood or other natural 
catastrophe, epidemic or pandemic, or any law, order, or 
requirement of any governmental agency or authority affecting 
either party, including without limitation orders incident to any 
such epidemic or pandemic, lockdown orders, stay-at-home 
orders, and curfews. 

 



 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the Acting City Manager to enter into a 

contract with Contech Contractors Inc., for the rehabilitation of Building 

#3. (ACAC) Animal Care and Adoption Center Director Lenor Teague 

AGENDA DATE:  April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Animal Care and Adoption Center 

PREPARED BY: Lenor Teague 

REQUEST: Hire Contech Contractors, Inc. rehabilitate existing building #3 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: Hire Contech Contractors, Inc 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: $105,882.77 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: $125,000.00 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

$105,882.77 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Acting City Manager and staff recommend approval 

EXHIBITS: Resolution and Bids Attached 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, after advertisement, a low bid in the amount of $105,882.77 was 

submitted by Contech Contractors, Inc., for the rehabilitation of Building #3 at the Animal 

Care and Adoption Center; and 

 WHEREAS, the funds for such project were budgeted at $125,000.00 and are 

available; and  

 WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and staff recommend Board approval;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the Acting City Manager is authorized to enter into a contract 

with Contech Contractors, Inc., for the purposes and in the amount set forth above.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of April, 2023.   

 

       _____________________________ 

                Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 









 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to rename a section of Preston Street east of 

Interstate 49, to Magee Drive. (Ward 3) (PWD-Planning) City Planner 

Mary Beck 

AGENDA DATE: April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance to rename a section of right of way that was cut off 

by Interstate 49 from Preston Street to Magee Drive.   

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: None requested. 

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission recommends approval.  Currently Magee 
Drive has no outlet on the west end with the name Magee Drive.  Actual 
addresses that would have to be changed consist of two residences and 
one church building.  Signatures of two of those three were obtained.   
There was no opposition to this request and indications are it would be 
helpful to those looking for Magee Drive off Cooper Tire.  All seventeen 
property owners of land abutting this section of right of way were 
notified of the request and invited to the Planning Commission review. 
The block ranges impacted are from the 3400 block of Preston Street to 
where it merges with 4300 Magee Drive, approximately 1900 linear 
feet.       
 
A public hearing was held at the Board of Directors’ meeting on March 
6, 2023.   

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt an ordinance to rename the section of Preston Street east of 

Interstate 49 to Magee Drive.   

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, application for City Manager 

review, petition, location map.  

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE RENAMING A SECTION OF 

PRESTON STREET EAST OF INTERSTATE 49 TO 

MAGEE DRIVE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, has 

received a request to rename a section of right of way separated by Interstate 49 from 

“Preston Street” to “Magee Drive”, more specifically the block range from 3400 Preston 

Street to 4300 Magee Drive; and  

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission conducted a public hearing on February 

13, 2023, to obtain citizen input from neighbors and interested citizens and after having no 

opposition, voted 5-0 for approval with two commissioners absent; and  

WHEREAS, the Acting City Manager and Staff recommend approval; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the segment of Preston Street between Interstate 49 on the 

west to where it becomes Magee Drive on the east is hereby renamed Magee Drive. 

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of April, 2023.   

 

       ___________________________ 

          Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 



 

 
 

 

Planning Commission review 
Prepared by: 

Planning Division - Public Works Department 
City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

 



 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

 

 
CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

T O :  Jay Ellington, City Manager 
F R O M :  Mary L. Beck, City Planner 
D A T E :  February 16, 2023 
S U B J E C T :  Board of Directors Agenda item for March 6, 2023 – Renaming 

recommendation – Request by Steven Hollibush, 1115 Garland Avenue, 
Texarkana, AR 71854, to rename a section of right of way separated by 
Interstate 49 from Preston Street to Magee Drive.         

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:       
 
The segment of Preston Street under consideration is located between Interstate 49 on the west 
to where it becomes Magee Drive on the east.  The block ranges are from 3400 Preston Street 
to 4300 Magee Drive.   
 
REASON FOR REQUEST:    
 
To aid in delivery of goods and services and general transport.      
 
EXISTING LAND USES:     
 

 Site:     NA  
North:  Single-family dwellings, fire station, church, & undeveloped 
East:   Single-family dwellings  
South: Single-family dwellings  
West:   Interstate 49 

  
EXISTING ZONING: Site:      NA 

North:    M-1 Limited Manufacturing, R-2 Single-family  
              residential, C-1 General retail commercial & O-1  
              Office quiet commercial     
South:    M-1 Limited Manufacturing, R-2 Single-family  
              residential 
East:     R-2 Single-family  
              residential 
West:    NA 
 

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/


 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

 

COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING ZONING: 
 
 The name of the street is not a factor for compatibility.  

   
UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
 
 Local :              Preston and Magee are local streets 

Collector:         NA 
Arterial:            NA 

 Water:              NA 
Sewer:              NA       
Fire hydrant:     Three fire hydrants are in the section impacted      
   

 

CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – “All plans, 
recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through the following procedure 
for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
(A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, ordinances, and 
regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, 
at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and proposed ordinance and 
regulations may be recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a majority vote of the 
entire commission.   
 
(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and regulations, the 
commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and regulations to the 
legislative body of the city for its adoption. 
 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended ordinances and 
regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, or, by a majority vote of the entire 
membership, may, by ordinance or resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances 
or regulations submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this subchapter shall be 
construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the ordinances and resolutions by a vote of 
a majority of the council. 
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted plans, ordinances, and regulations 
shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the county recorder of 
the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, ordinances, and 
regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate limits.  

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/


 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

The required notice was published in the Sunday, January 29, 2023, edition of the Texarkana 
Gazette.  Letters were mailed to seventeen  (17) property owners adjacent to Preston Street.   
 
OPPOSITION:  
 

 

None to date 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 
The Planning Commission met on February 13, 2023, to review this request.  On a motion to 
approve by Mr. Clyde (Boots) Thomas, seconded by Dr. Randall Hickerson, the motion passed.  
A roll call vote was 5-0 as two commissioners were absent.    
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Absent 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Absent 
Randall Hickerson Yes 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas Yes 
Mike Jones                             Yes 

 

  
ACTION REQUESTED BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  
To adopt an ordinance to change the name of the right of way on the east side of Interstate 49 
from Preston Street to Magee Drive.  The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every 
ordinance to be read three times before adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the 
same meeting or at the second and third subsequent meetings after the first reading of the 
ordinance.   

 
E n c l o s u r e :  N a m i n g  p o l i c y  a n d  p e t i t i o n s  
 

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/




















 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt an Ordinance to rezone a tract of land located at 5301 Sanderson 

Lane in Ward 6 from C-3 Open-display commercial zoning to R-4 

Medium density residential in order to build a single-family dwelling 

(Beed). (PWD-Planning) City Planner Mary Beck  

AGENDA DATE: April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: Public Works/Planning 

PREPARED BY: Mary Beck 

REQUEST: Adopt an ordinance to rezone a tract of land located at 5301 Sanderson 

Lane from C-3 Open-display commercial zoning to R-4 Medium-density 

residential in order to build a single-family dwelling. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY: The Planning Commission recommends approval of this rezoning with 

no opposition voted.  The property has been continually owned by the 

family for generations and some decades ago was the location of a family 

dwelling.  

EXPENSE REQUIRED: 0 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: 0 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

0 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Adopt an ordinance to rezone property in order to build a single-family 

dwelling.     

EXHIBITS: Ordinance, Memo to City Manager, deeds, location/zoning map.  

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. K-286, 

AS AMENDED; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 

 
WHEREAS, an application to amend the Land Use Plan was filed with the Planning 

Commission of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, requesting the following described land located 

at 5301 Sanderson Lane, be rezoned, from C-3 Open Display Commercial to R-4 Medium-Density 

Residential: 

A part of the East One-half of the Northeast Quarter of the Northeast Quarter (E 

1.2 NE ¼ NE ¼) of Section Eight (8), Township Fifteen (15) South, Range Twenty-

Eight (28) West, Miller County, Arkansas, and being more particularly described 

as follows: BEGINNING at the Southeast corner of the Raymond Price and Leola 

Price 1.5 acre tract of land, said Point of Beginning being located at a point in 

Sanderson Lane 470 feet, more or less, South of the Northeast corner of Section 8, 

Township 15 South, Range 28 West, Miller County, Arkansas; Thence South 99 

feet, more or less, with Sanderson Lane to the Northeast corner of the Raymond 

Price, et al, 5 acre tract of land to the Northwest corner of the Raymond Price 5 acre 

tract of land; Thence West 660 feet, more or less, with the North line of the 

Raymond Price 5 acre tract of land to the Northwest corner of the Raymond Price 

5 acre tract of land; Thence North 99 feet, more or less, to the Southwest corner of 

the Raymond Price and Leola Price 1.5 acre tract of land; Thence East with the 

South line of the Raymond Price and Leola Price 1.5 acre tract of land, 660 feet, 

more or less, to the POINT OF BEGINNING, and containing 1.50 acres of land, 

more or less.   

 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, after public hearing, has approved said 

application and recommended that the Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, 

adopt the ordinance affecting said rezoning request;  

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that Ordinance No. K-286, as amended, should be amended to rezone the 

above-described property in the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, from C-3 Open Display Commercial 

to R-4 Medium-Density Residential.  This is solely a rezoning and no other action, conveyance, or 

release of interest.   

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of April, 2023.   

 

       ___________________________ 

                 Allen L. Brown, Mayor 



 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Planning Review 
 

Prepared by: 
Planning Division - Public Works Department 

City of Texarkana, Arkansas 

 



 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

 

 
CITY OF TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
216 WALNUT ST 71854-6024 
P O BOX 2711 TEXARKANA ARKANSAS 75504-2711 
PHONE (870) 779-4971 – FAX (870) 773-2395 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 

T O :  Jay Ellington, City Manager 
F R O M :  Mary L. Beck, City Planner 
D A T E :  March 15, 2023 
S U B J E C T :  Board of Directors Agenda item for April 3, 2023 – Rezoning 

recommendation – Request by Edward C. Beed, 622 S. Boyd Drive, 
Kerman, CA 93630-1222, to rezone parcel No. 00211200 from C-3 
Open-display commercial to R-4 Medium-density residential in order to 
construct a single-family home.   
       

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:       
 
The property is addressed as 5301 Sanderson Lane and is legally described as the E/2, NE1/4, 
NE1/4, Section Eight (8), Township Fifteen (15) South, Range Twenty-eight (28) West, Miller 
County, Texarkana, Arkansas, and contains one and a half (1.5) acres more or less.     
 
REASON FOR REQUEST:    
 
Property owner is returning to family property and wishes to construct a dwelling.      
 
EXISTING LAND USES:      
 
                               Site:     vacant, undeveloped 
                               North:   Scott Tractor business 
                               East      single-family dwellings 
                               South:   vacant, undeveloped  
                               West:    vacant, undeveloped  
 
EXISTING ZONING:  
 

Site:    R-2 Single-family residential  
North:  C-3 Open-display Commercial   
South:  R-2 Single-family residential   
East:    R-2 Single-family residential and C-3 Open-display   
            Commercial 
West:   C-3 Open-display commercial  

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/


 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

  
COMPATIBILITY WITH EXISTING ZONING: 
 
 

The long-term comprehensive plan of 1988 shows this area as single-family residential just 
south of commercial property that fronts along I-30.  There are several single-family homes 
in the immediate area with little change from that in 1988 at this location.  Because buffer 
zones with higher density residential are preferred to be adjacent to commercial zones with 
a wide range of land uses, the R-4 is considered to be preferable to single family zoning 
options although the commission may consider more restrictive zoning options for 
recommendation. No conflicts are anticipated.    
       

UTILITIES & TRANSPORTATION NETWORK: 
 
 

Local :             Sanderson Lane 
Collector:         none 
Arterial:            none 
Water:              Water main, 16” located in Sanderson Lane 
Sewer:              Sewer main, 8” on the east side of Sanderson Lane                         
Fire hydrant:     Located about 30’ from the property 
 

 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH APPLICABLE ORDINANCES AND/OR STATE STATUTES: 
 
The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated (14-56-422B) requires the following – “All plans, 
recommended ordinances, and regulations shall be adopted through the following procedure 
for adoption of plans and regulations: 
 
(A) The Planning Commission shall hold a public hearing on the plans, ordinances, and 
regulations proposed under this subchapter. 
 
(B)  Notice of public hearing shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the city, 
at least (1) time fifteen days prior to the hearing. 
 
(2) Following the public hearing, proposed plans may be adopted, and proposed ordinance and 
regulations may be recommended as presented, or in modified form, by a majority vote of the 
entire commission.   
 
(3) Following it adoption of plans and recommendation of ordinances and regulations, the 
commission shall certify adopted plans of recommended ordinances of and regulations to the 
legislative body of the city for its adoption. 
 
(4) The legislative body of the city may return the plans and recommended ordinances and 
regulations to the commission for further study or rectification, or, by a majority vote of the entire 
membership, may, by ordinance or resolution, adopt the plans and recommended ordinances 
or regulations submitted by the commission.  However, noting in this subchapter shall be 

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/


 
 
 

 
www.cityoftexarkanaar.com 

construed to limit the city board’s authority to recall the ordinances and resolutions by a vote of 
a majority of the council. 
 
(5) Following adoption by the legislative body, the adopted plans, ordinances, and regulations 
shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall file, with the county recorder of 
the counties in which territorial jurisdiction is being exercised such plans, ordinances, and 
regulations as pertain to the territory beyond the corporate limits.  
 
The required notice was published in the Sunday, February 26, 2023 edition of the Texarkana 
Gazette.  Letters were mailed to twelve (12) adjacent property owners within 300’ as required 
by local ordinance.  
 
OPPOSITION:  
 

 

None 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION CERTIFICATION: 
 
The Planning Commission met on March 14, 2023, to review this request.  On a motion to 
approve by Mr. Mike Jones, seconded by Mr. Clyde (Boots) Thomas, the motion passed.  A roll 
call vote was 6-0 as one commissioners was absent.    
 

Adger Smith Yes  
Anderson Neal Yest 
Bertha Dunn Yes 
Jason Dupree Yes 
Randall Hickerson Absent 
Clyde “Boots” Thomas Yes 
Mike Jones                             Yes 

 

  
ACTION REQUESTED BY CITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
  
To adopt an ordinance to change zoning from C-3 Open-display commercial to R-4 Medium-
density residential.    The Arkansas Code of 1987 Annotated requires every ordinance to be 
read three times before adoption.  These three readings may all occur at the same meeting or 
at the second and third subsequent meetings after the first reading of the ordinance.   

 
 

http://www.cityoftexarkanaar.com/






 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopts an Ordinance granting the request for prerequisite municipal 

approval of a private club application for 2415 Arkansas Boulevard, 

Pelican Fish and Seafood, Inc. (McVay) (CCD) 

The applicant requests an emergency clause. An emergency clause 

requires a separate and distinct vote of the board and is valid only if 

there is a two-thirds vote of approval by the board. (Hdbk. Const. 

Amend 7) 

AGENDA DATE: April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☒  Resolution☐  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk  

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Prerequisite approval to continue the application process through the 

State. 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: Yes 

SUMMARY: Applicant is requesting prerequisite approval to continue the application 

process through the State. Pursuant to ACT 112 of 2017, all new private 

club applications must be submitted with an ordinance from the 

governing body of the county or municipality in which the private club 

wishes to be located, approving the application. 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

The Interim City Manager and staff recommend approval.  

EXHIBITS: Ordinance and application 

 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING THE REQUEST 

FOR PREREQUISITE MUNICIPAL APPROVAL 

OF A PRIVATE CLUB APPLICATION BY 

DANNY RAY MCVAY, AS APPLICANT, ON 

BEHALF OF PELICAN FISH AND SEAFOOD, 

INC.; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR 

OTHER PURPOSES 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and Rules and 

Regulations adopted by the Arkansas Alcoholic Beverage Control Division (the “ABC”) in 

accordance therewith requiring prior municipal approval by ordinance as a prerequisite to 

submittal of certain applications to the ABC or its Director relating to private clubs, request has 

been made that this Board of Directors of the City of Texarkana, Arkansas, approve the application 

of Danny Ray McVay as applicant for Pelican fish and Seafood, Inc.;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Directors of the City of 

Texarkana, Arkansas, that:   

Section 1.  The request of Danny Ray McVay on behalf of Pelican Fish and Seafood, Inc., 

for prerequisite municipal approval of an application for a private club at 2415 Arkansas 

Boulevard, Texarkana, Arkansas, 71854 as required by Ark. Code Ann. §3-9-222 and the Rules 

and Regulations of the ABC is hereby granted.  

Section 2.  Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to be a municipal endorsement of 

any business operation, nor a waiver of the application of any City ordinance or other local, state, 

or federal law, rule, or regulation, now or hereafter adopted.  

Section 3.  This action being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety, and a separate and distinct vote having been taken on this emergency clause, an emergency 

is therefore declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its 

passage and approval.   

PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of April, 2023. 

        

   _________________________ 

        Allen L. Brown, Mayor 



ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 







 

CITY OF TEXARKANA, AR 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AGENDA TITLE: Adopt a Resolution reappointing Glen Greenwell and Matt Keil to the 

Civil Service Commission. (CCD) City Clerk Heather Soyars 

AGENDA DATE: April 3, 2023 

ITEM TYPE: Ordinance☐  Resolution☒  Other☐:  

DEPARTMENT: City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: Heather Soyars 

REQUEST: Reappointments to the Civil Service Commission 

EMERGENCY CLAUSE: N/A 

SUMMARY:  

 Term Date 

Glenn Greenwell 04/2023----2029 

  

Matt Keil 04/2023----2029 

 
 

EXPENSE REQUIRED: N/A 

AMOUNT BUDGETED: N/A 

APPROPRIATION 

REQUIRED: 

N/A 

RECOMMENDED 

ACTION: 

Interim City Manager and staff recommend approval. 

EXHIBITS: Resolution, Civil Service member list 

 



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

WHEREAS, vacancies exist on the civil service commission; and 

 WHEREAS, it is necessary that appointments be made to fill the vacant positions;  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the City 

of Texarkana, Arkansas, that the following appointments are hereby approved: 

 

Board/Commission: Appointee: Term Date: 

Civil Service Commission Glenn Greenwell 04/2023----2029 

 Matt Keil 04/2023----2029 

  

 PASSED AND APPROVED this 3rd day of April, 2023.   

 

       ___________________________ 

            Allen L. Brown, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Heather Soyars, City Clerk  

 

 

APPROVED: 

 

 

_________________________________ 

Joshua L. Potter, City Attorney 

 



Updated 12122022 
 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 

6 – YEAR TERMS 
 

 Appointment Term Date Term Ward 

     

Glenn Greenwell 

7 Trendy Ridge  

870-774-2885 

Resolution No. 2017-17 

Appointment  

04/2017----2023 1 

 

6 

     

Matt Keil 

6515 Wuthering Heights 

903-277-0550 

Resolution No. 2017-17 

Appointment  

04/2017----2023 2 6 

     

Tim Johnson 

1520 Pecan Street 

903-701-2095 

Resolution No. 2019-43 

Appointment  

 

04/2019----2025 1 3 

     

Ricky Holder 

12 Downing Drive 

903-826-4215 

Resolution No. 2019-43 

Appointment  

 

04/2019----2025 1 5 

     

Pete Cheatham 

1507 Ray Street 

870-330-4563 

Resolution No. 2021-38 

Reappointment 

04/2021----2027 2 3 

     

 






	Top
	1.	service awards
	item_1_04032023_ccd_employee service awards

	2.	dispatcher's appreciation week
	3.	BOD allowing depart. heads as interim city mgr
	item_11_04032023_bod_depart head interim city manager
	item_11_04032023_Resolution_depart. head interim city manager2

	4.	appointing an Interim City Manager
	item_10_04032023_bod_interim city manager
	item_10_Resolution_interim city manager

	5.	minutes
	item_2_04032023_ccd_minutes
	03202023_minutes

	6.	Adopt a Resolution Expressing the Willingness of the City of Texarkana to Utilize State Aid Street Monies for Euclid Street Overlay.
	item_4_04032023_pwd_Euclid Street State Aid Project
	item_4_04032023_pwd_state aid resolution
	item_4_04032023_pwd_State Aid Street Committee Letter

	7.	audit letter
	item_5_04032023_fin_2022 audit engagement letter
	item_5_04032023_fin_2022 audit letter resolution
	item_5_04032023_fin_2022 audit_City of Texarkana AR Contract 2022

	8.	ACAC old building
	item_6_04032023_acac_building
	item_6_04032023_acac_resolution
	item_6_04032023_acac_bids

	9.	rename_preston_to_magee
	item_7_04032023_pwd_Rename_Agenda item preston street to magee
	item_7_04032023_pwd_rename to Magee Ord
	item_7_04032023_pwd_Rename_Map preston st
	item_7_04032023_pwd_Rename_Memo to rename preston to magee
	item_7_04032023_pwd_Rename_petition and requirements

	10.	rezone_5301_sanderson_lane
	item_10_04032023_pwd_Sanderson Lane_Rezone
	item_8_04032023_pwd_Ordinance_Sanderson Lane
	item_10_04032023_pwd_Sanderson Ln_map for mailout
	item_10_04032023_pwd_Sanderson Ln_Memo
	item_10_04032023_pwd_Sanderson Ln_deed for beed

	11.	Pelican Fish
	item_15_04032023_private club_pelican fish
	item_15_ordinance_Private Club Pelican Fish
	item_15_04032023_pelican fish applicaiton

	12.	Civil Service Commission
	item_9_04032023_ccd_civil service
	item_9_04032023_ccd_Resolution_civil service
	item_11_04032023_ccd_2022_Civil Service Commission
	item_11_04032023_pwd_Civil Service_Glenn Greenwell
	item_11_04032023_pwd_Civil Service_Matt Keil

	Bottom

